

ROWAN COUNTY TOURISM BOARD OF DIRECTORS MEETING

Wednesday, June 15, 2022: 12:00 pm

BOARD MEETING MINUTES

Board Members Attending: Vivian Hopkins, Sada Troutman, Craig Pierce, Krista Osterweil, Stephen Kidd, John Ketner, Karen Alexander, Michelle Patterson, Cyndi Greenwood (Virtual)

Not Attending: Don Bringle

TDA Staff: James Meacham, Sarah Michalec, Brooke Arrowood

RCTDA Call to Order

Osterweil called the RCTDA to order at 12:00pm.

Approval of the Minutes

Motion: Craig Pierce made the motion for approval of the May 2022 minutes.

Second: John Ketner Motion: Approved

Organizational & Financial Update

Meacham reported that occupancy tax revenue as of 4-30-2022 for fiscal year 2021-22 on an accrual basis equaled \$1,153,520 through May 31, 2022, and is 33% ahead of the 2021-22 initial budget projections. April 2022 occupancy tax collections (with two properties outstanding) were 31% higher than April 2021 and were 22% higher than April 2019. April 2022 occupancy taxes were the highest monthly collection on record for the month of April, eclipsing the previous April record set in 2019.

Meacham said revenue is very sound and the May 2022 occupancy taxes are projected to come in at \$120,000. As of 6-10-22 fiscal year to date revenue is ahead of expenses by \$245,051. Meacham reported total current assets of \$598,086 an increase of \$55,950 since the last report. Accounts Receivables equaled \$237,784 consisting of April and May occ. taxes. The cash on hand as of 05-31-2022 equaled \$360,301 an increase of \$44,842 and unrestricted cash on hand has increased by \$193,197 since the start of the fiscal year. Total assets equaled \$3,358,496 as of 05-31-2022.

Consideration of the 2022-23 RCTDA & SRCVB Budget

The Board discussed the budget and thanked staff and the Finance Committee for their time and efforts putting together the 2022-23 budgets. There were no additional questions or discussion on the budgets that wasn't discussed or answered at the May budget session. No members of the public came by to review or request a copy of the budgets. The budgets were made available both in person and on the website. A public notice advertisement was also placed with the Salisbury Post.

Motion: Craig Pierce made a motion to open the public hearing for consideration of the 2022-23 Budgets.

Second: Stephen Kidd Motion: Approved

Motion: Craig Pierce made a motion to close the public hearing for consideration of the 2022-23 Budgets.

Second: Stephen Kidd Motion: Approved

Motion: Craig Pierce made a motion to adopt the 2022-23 Budgets as presented.

Second: Stephen Kidd Motion: Approved

Resolution to retire CVB Branding Loan

Meacham reported that at the end of this fiscal year there will be a balance of \$165,780 left on the branding loan. Meacham requested the board adopt a resolution motion to transfer excess revenues from the TDA to the CVB in the amount of the outstanding loan balance and retire the branding loan by the end of the fiscal year, June 30, 2022. Meacham reported there is no pre-payment penalty for paying off the loan early.

Motion: Craig Pierce made the motion to transfer excess revenues from the TDA to the CVB to retire the branding loan by the end of the fiscal year, June 30, 2022.

Second: Stephen Kidd Motion: Approved

Meacham directed members to review the lodging market data sheet. Staff is monitoring the data on a week-to-week basis and the report is about seven days behind the actual market. Meacham noted that staff first started seeing some demand softening in May when the occupancy percentage went down 1.1%. May and June 2021 were the first months of travel after the Covid-19 shut down. Meacham said that demand started down a little in May 2022 and is down in June 2022 as compared to the same months in 2019. However, room rates are substantially higher.

Occupancy rates have gone from a high of 79% down to 68% which is still a healthy number when combined with an average daily rate that is up 19% from \$87 to \$104. Rates can also imact demand, so properties are working on finding the "sweet spot" for pricing balancing both price and demand.

Meacham reported that through the first eleven days of June, revenue compared to the previous year is up 3% and June 2021 was a record month. There is a great deal of market changes currently underway and many unknown variables. Staff is monitoring all the reports and staying on top of the data. The 2022-23 budget is very sound and has a sizable amount of cushion of unallocated funds. Meacham noted that group business is strong for the fall for the destination and there is a little bit of a move back to healthier business and leisure trave patternsl. Staff will continue to be cautiously optimistic going forward.

Meacham presented and the Board reviewed the Fiscal Year 2021-2022 Audit Contract and Management agreement.

Motion: Craig Pierce made a motion for approval of the audit contract with Carrick, CPA as presented for

FY2021-22

Second: Stephen Kidd Motion: Approved

Destination Marketing Report

Michalec reported that the new e-Newsletter template went out in May and staff saw a jump from a 24% open rate in April to 38.11% open rate in May. The new visitrowancountync.com website is doing well and still being fine-tuned daily. Stats for May 2022 show 28,900 page views compared to May 2019 of 24,000. Year to date page views of just over 122,000. Top landing pages for May 2022 were Day Out with Thomas (DOWT) Package, the homepage, and the individual events page. This depicts that the new site is moving people to spend money, explore new things and to learn more about our story. The Root Rez application for package booking is working wonderful. Michalec reported year to date, 85 room nights booked with revenue just over \$12,000.

Social media in May was largely dominated by the Cheerwine Festival. There were 10,000 engagements in May with 36,800 total engagements year to date. Twitter impressions were 6,000 and Instagram impressions were 25,000. The Cheerwine blog received 2500 views. The total digital impact was just under 170,000 which is a 29% increase over May of 2021. Total digital reach was just over 2 million.

Trolleys continue to be busy, and Brooke is doing well with handling the increase in bookings. Meacham reported that a market adjustment and increase in pay was granted to the Trolley CDL drivers as well as an increase in price for trolley rentals. There have been no negative reactions to the increase in trolley rental fees from customers.

Michalec reported 49 packages and 70 room nights for DOWT as opposed to 22 packages booked in May of 2019. This is a very good comeback from 2019 and 2020. Polar Express Packages started last week with 15 packages and 23 room nights.

Meacham reported that with tourism support there have been 173 room nights supported, and everything is right on track with the coming events of Little League, Smoke-out and RPCA. Meacham said that summer heading into 4th of July will see a great deal of marketing emphasis on Thomas and Polar package sales, the Little League World Series, pushing the local food and beverage spots, and the Cannon Ballers.

Staff is finishing up the summer photoshoots at the local vineyards, NCTM, parks, Cheerwine, Patterson Farm etc... featuring people and families. The photos are already being incorporated into the website and marketing pieces. Next week photos will be taken at Gold Hill, Dan Nicholas, Kannapolis, and Tiger World.

Michalec reported that Arrowood has completed over 50 visits to sites, attractions, restaurants, etc...to build relationships with community partners. The goal of the visits is to extend a branch of support to the partners as well as gather content and photos for use in blogs and other marketing placement.

Gateway Building

Meacham reported that the gateway tenants met and agreed to a lease increase for the building starting with the new fiscal year. A new HVAC unit was just purchased and installed this spring. The building has four units in total. Additional lease increases and reserve allocations will need to be considered moving forward as the Gateway is now over 20 years old and will be scheduled or need additional replacements and maintenance.

Additional Business

At the May meeting the Board tasked Meacham with continuing to look at new mechanisms or programs to keep compensation for all employees competitive, consistent with the market, similar positions and supportive of staff growth. Meacham presented a longevity compensation plan, inline with Rowan County governments plan as model for implementation at Rowan Tourism.

The board reviewed the plan and through unanimous consent approved the adoption of a longevity compensation plan for CVB and TDA staff starting in FY2022-23.and gave the CEO the authority to amend the plan as he deemed necessary to support and retain talent and remain competitive with the market place..

The meeting adjourned at 1:04 pm. Respectfully submitted. Lesley Pullium SRCVB